	PLANNING BOARD

FEBRUARY 10, 2011 PUBLIC MEETING
	1



In compliance with the Open Public Meetings Act of the State of New Jersey adequate notice of this meeting has been mailed to The Daily Record and posted at the municipal building.

ROLL CALL:

Members Present:   John Cavanaugh, Joe Fleischner, Rene Gadelha, Nelson Russell, Mayor David Scapicchio, Jim Staszak, Scott Van Ness, Steve Bedell

Members Excused:  John Mania, Howie Weiss

Members Absent:  Dan Nelsen

Professionals Attending:  Chuck McGroarty, Planning Consultant, Eugene Buczynski, P.E., Edward Buzak, Esq., Catherine Natafalusy, Planning Administrator

Professionals Excused:  Tiena Cofoni, Esq.



APPROVAL OF MINUTES
December 9, 2010 Public Meeting

Motion:

Nelson Russell


Second:

Jim Staszak

Roll Call:


John Cavanaugh
- yes


Nelson Russell

- yes


Mayor Scapicchio
- yes


Jim Staszak

- yes


Scott Van Ness

- yes


Steve Bedell

- yes

December 16, 2010 Public Meeting


Motion:

Nelson Russell


Second:

Joe Fleischner

Roll Call:


John Cavanaugh
- yes


Joe Fleischner

- yes


Rene Gadelha

- yes


Nelson Russell

- yes


Mayor Scapicchio
- yes


Jim Staszak

- yes


Scott Van Ness

- yes


Steve Bedell

- yes



APPOINTMENT OF ENVIRONMENTAL CONSULTANT

MS. GADELHA:

Okay next is the appointment of Environmental Consultant I’d like to seek a nomination.

MAYOR SCAPICCHIO:
I’d like to nominate Dr. Keller.

MR. VAN NESS:

I’ll second that nomination.

MS. GADELHA:

Any other nominees?  Roll call.

MRS. NATAFALUSY:
John Cavanaugh
- yes




Joe Fleischner

- yes




Rene Gadelha

- yes




Nelson Russell

- yes




Mayor Scapicchio
- yes




Jim Staszak

- yes




Scott Van Ness

- yes




Steve Bedell

- yes

RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE AWARD OF NON-FAIR & OPEN CONTRACT FOR PROFESSIONAL SVCS.:  HABITAT BY DESIGN – ENVIRONMENTAL CONSULTING SERVICES
MS. GADELHA:

Okay so we need a motion to accept the Resolution Authorizing the Award of Non-Fair & Open Contract for Professional Services by Habitat by Design Dr. Keller Environmental Consulting Services.

MR. STASZAK:

So moved.

MAYOR SCAPICCHIO:
Second.

MS. GADELHA:

Any comments?  Roll call.

MRS. NATAFALUSY:
John Cavanaugh
- yes




Joe Fleischner

- yes




Rene Gadelha

- yes




Nelson Russell

- yes




Mayor Scapicchio
- yes




Jim Staszak

- yes




Scott Van Ness

- yes




Steve Bedell

- yes



COMMITTEE REPORTS

MS. GADELHA:

Okay committee reports Mr. Mayor do you have anything?

MAYOR SCAPICCHIO:
No reports tonight.

MS. GADELHA:

Okay and with John Mania absent is there anything for Council that you’d like to report?

MAYOR SCAPICCHIO:
No, no reports for Council.

MS. GADELHA:

Okay Nelson anything for environmental commission?

MR. RUSSELL:

No we meet next Wednesday.

MS. GADELHA:

Okay the ordinance committee has not met but we are hopefully going to schedule a meeting by the end of this meeting for the very near future for next month.  Howie is not here but he said there was no street naming committee report.  And on behalf of the open space committee I can report that we’re meeting Monday the 14th.  



DISCUSSION MATTER

MS. GADELHA:

Shall we move to the discussion matter?  Okay excellent then Chuck?

MR. MCGROARTY:
Okay the intention here was to spend a little bit of time looking at an overall picture of the . . . or an outline rather of the Highlands Preservation Ordinance.  We’ve talked about it before.  We learned however over the past day or two, actually yesterday, that what Highlands is asking municipalities to do such as Mt. Olive, those municipalities that have already now received Plan Conformance Approval I’m not sure exactly that’s the right way they phrase it but Mt. Olive on January 20th received approval from the Highlands Council acknowledging that the Township to date has complied with the conformance process.  What they’re asking us to do now is to not take any further action until, number one they are waiting for the minutes of last month’s meeting I guess if the Governor does not veto those minutes then that meeting becomes an official meeting or however that works and any actions taken are authorized.  And what the Council will then do is examine the bills to date, there is this total of $100,000 for this grant, they will examine what has been spent to date and they will establish what they’re calling an amended agreement.  And then once that’s done which I’m told will be about two weeks after the meeting is deemed to be official we will get a revised implementation schedule and then we’ll move forward.  So the thought was one of the first tasks for this ordinance would be to look at . . . coming up with residential cluster standards which are mandatory in certain areas of the Highlands Preservation Area.  Mainly for Mt. Olive it would be the agricultural resource area so it’s some of the area west of Wolfe Road.  It’s not I think totally in Mt. Olive it’s probably about 300 acres it’s some of the farmland over there that West King Estates farms and I’ve forgotten his name it’s been so long but the farmer on the other side of the road Bob Perkowski.  So we need to come up with those kinds of standards, now whether they’ll ever be developed who knows but that’s probably one of the first things the Board would want to do or the Ordinance Committee maybe to create an outline of that and bring it back here to the Board.  And then following that there’s other tasks that will have to be done.  But again we . . . . it’s not likely that we will be doing any of that in the near future because we will not be able to bill the grant for that and there’s no reason why the township should be paying for that you know in the meantime.  So that’s kind of where things stand at the moment it’s not a negative report it just means that they’re sort of changing their procedures a little bit to get a handle I guess on . . . . I mean because they’ve told us some towns already exhausted the $100,000 and that’s certainly not the case here and we’re in good shape.  And in fact they’re looking to give Mt. Olive more money to do some studies for redevelopment areas.  But again that will all take a little bit of time.

MR. BEDELL:

So do you want info. Like you know we can say that if they build there the lots have to be half acre lots or one acres lots or just stuff like that?

MR. MCGROARTY:
Right and the cluster standards, the clustering is going to . . . I can tell you in a general sense any area if it is developed in the agricultural resource area for residential 80 percent of the tract would have to be reserved as open space.  So that would necessitate lots probably on half acre probably three quarters of an acre.  Again these parcels are going to be served by septic because we can’t create sewer systems in the Preservation Area.  So there’s a little you know some complications that will arise.   But again in some municipalities where they have large farming, where there’s a lot of the land is still active farming and it’s an agricultural resource area those kind of standards will apply throughout.   In Mt. Olive it’s going to be a relatively confined area.
MR. BEDELL:

Okay.

MR. MCGROARTY:
The other stuff that we will be doing with this Preservation Ordinance is as we’ve talked about before would be going through it we want to tailor it for Mt. Olive so we’d be taking things out of it, and we talked about that with Highlands.  There’s a whole list of what are going to be prohibited uses in certain areas Tiers 1 and 2 are wellhead protection areas and so on so there’s some adjustments that we would need to make in this ordinance.  But again you know we talked about the ordinance committee meeting and I think it still can do that at least there’s lots of other things to be done but the specific work on the Preservation Ordinance we, unless you want to pursue it right now we think it’s probably wise to just put it on hold for now.  So my one concern and I’ll just finish on this point is I said to Highlands the people I was talking with at Highlands about this, first of all it would have been nice to have been advised of this a little bit more clearly earlier on but you know, I said the other point is we don’t want to be in a situation where everything is you know we get the amended agreement done and all that sort of thing and then you tell us we’ve got two months to get everything done.  And they assured us oh no, that won’t happen you will get an implementation schedule and you’ll be able to work with that and so on.  So we anticipate this will go through this year 2011 and next year as well.  

MR. CAVANAUGH:
So Chuck I mean I’m trying to follow you but I have to be honest with you I just don’t get all of the pieces.  Is there like an overlay or something where they can take our town and give us some transparency and say this area has this set of rules and this area has this set of rules?

MR. MCGROARTY:
Yes there is and we can . . . you’ve seen them before but I think we can do it, we’ll certainly do it again and maybe at the next meeting we can do that.  What it amounts to is I think its 72 percent of the township is in the Preservation Area.  So it’s really just the area in Budd Lake from the Village Green out towards the Foreign Trade Zone and down in Clover Hill in that section of Flanders.  Those two sections of the township are outside of the Preservation Area everything else is in it so everything else is covered by this kind of ordinance.  But John we can map that out and we’ve had . . . .

MR. CAVANAUGH:
No need I get the picture.

MR. MCGROARTY:
We can do that again and we can circulate that.  It’s very confusing, it’s very . . . you know we’re all still trying to figure it out as it’s going along and so are they apparently.
MR. BUCZYNSKI:
It’s a progress.

MRS. NATAFALUSY:
Do you want to just take a break until Ed gets here?

MS. GADELHA:

Yeah we might as well.



APPLICATION #PB 10-34 NEW CINGULAR WIRELESS PCS LLC

MS. GADELHA:

So we’re going to move to agenda item H which is our development matter this evening it’s PB 10-34 for New Cingular Wireless PCS LLC Block 7500, Lot 6 – 5 Gail Drive for preliminary and final site plan with variances.  

MR. LEVINE:

Thank you very much and good evening my name is Mike Levine I’m an attorney with Day Pitney and I’m here this evening on behalf of the applicant New Cingular Wireless.  The property that’s the subject of our application is municipally owned property at 5 Gail Drive Block 7500, Lot 6.  It’s the site of the existing water tank.  The Board may recall that just about a year ago you approved a very similar application for Verizon to co-locate its wireless telecommunications antennas on this water tank.  New Cingular very similarly is also proposing to co-locate 12 of its wireless antennas at the top of the water tank and to put its equipment on the ground at the base of the tank within a fenced compound.  There’s a wireless ordinance in town that makes this a permitted use so we do require site plan approval and in fact we’re a little bit more fully compliant with the wireless ordinance than even Verizon was in that Verizon required a setback variance on the 50 foot setback requirement with respect to every property line.  We’re actually going to meet that the only variance that we need is a bulk variance with respect to fence height to match what’s existing there both the existing fence that surrounds the water tank as well as the fence that was approved to surround the Verizon equipment.  There’s a 6 foot maximum height limit we’re proposing 7 to match what’s there so we do need a bulk variance for that otherwise we’re fully conforming and just need site plan approval.  As I mentioned it’s municipally owned property we went through the public bidding process and won a bid and have entered a lease agreement with the Township and just here to get the site plan and bulk variance approval that’s required.  Frank Colasurdo is our architect who has coincidence would have it was also the architect that testified before you in connection with the Verizon application.  I’d like to have him get introduced and sworn in so that we can review the site plan with you folks. 
(FRANK COLASURDO SWORN IN FOR THE RECORD)

MR. BUZAK:

Please be seated and state your name and business address for the record spelling your last name.

MR. COLASURDO:
Frank Colasurdo (C-O-L-A-S-U-R-D-O) with a working address of 33 Woodport Road, Sparta, New Jersey.  I’m a licensed architect in the State of New Jersey.
MR. LEVINE:

I’ll be offering Mr. Colasurdo’s testimony as a licensed architect he’s testified before this Board before I just want to ask that the Board recognize his testimony as an expert in the area of site plan design and architectural design.

MS. GADELHA:

Okay anyone from the Board have any questions for this witness?  Okay proceed.

MR. LEVINE:

Thanks very much.  Frank could you just review with the Board very briefly the existing site conditions and then go with a little bit more detail with the additional improvements that Cingular is proposing for the site.

MR. COLASURDO:
Okay I’d like to put up my exhibits?

MR. LEVINE:

Yeah absolutely.  Have those been rendered or colored at all to make them different from what was submitted in support of our application?

MR. COLASURDO:
They have not been colored or rendered but they were slightly changed.  The only change occurs on sheet Z5.  In one of the Township reports it was noticed that we had mislabeled the quantity of shrubs, landscape shrubs that we were proposing.  It was just mislabeled in the landscape box and we changed that that’s the only difference with this set and the set that the Board is reviewing or has in front of them tonight.

MR. BUZAK:

What was the correct number Mr. Colasurdo was it 19 or 18?  I think that was the discrepancy.

MR. COLASURDO:
16.

MR. BUZAK:

16 is the correct number?

MR. BUCZYNSKI:
Is 16 the correct one?

MR. COLASURDO:
Right 16 is what we’re proposing.

MR. BUZAK:

Thank you.  Are you going to use all of those sheets for the purposes of your presentation?

MR. COLASURDO:
Yeah these are the same sheets.

MR. BUZAK:

Okay what we’ll do is we’ll mark those corresponding to the numerals but we’ll change the Z designation to an A designation.  So we’ll start with A-1, A-2, etc. and they’ll be the same sheets that are on there we’ll mark those I guess as you proceed if you have a pen.  So we’ll have A-1 through A-7 is that seven sheets?

MR. COLASURDO:
Yes it is.  A-1 through A-7 are my site plans they were prepared for the application reviewed by the Township with the one change that I had mentioned earlier is I corrected the number of proposed landscape shrubs on sheet Z5 which would be identified as A-5 now?
MR. BUZAK:

Correct.

MR. COLASURDO:
Okay.  These are last dated in the lower left hand corner January 6, 2011 the site plans you have in front of you should be last dated 11/22/10.

MR. BUZAK:

Catherine do you have the new site plans?

MRS. NATAFALUSY:
No.

MR. BUZAK:

Okay.

MR. COLASURDO:
These have not been submitted we just made the change.

MR. BUZAK:

That’s fine.

MR. BUCZYNSKI:
You actually eliminated 3 trees then?

MR. COLASURDO:
Yeah.  I’m going to start with sheet Z3 of my site plans that has been labeled A-3 for the record.  It’s an overall site plan of the parcel that the Township owns it’s known as 5 Gail Drive Mt. Olive, New Jersey Block 7500, Lot 6.  It sits in the R-1 zone.  The property fronts Gail Drive, you’ve got over 100 feet of frontage along Gail Drive.  Currently on this property there’s a Township water tank, Verizon Wireless last year was approved to install a wireless telecommunications facility at this water tank.  The tank is surrounded by a security fence and mostly wooded on three sides of the water tank.  You do have residential houses to the north and to the south and across Gail Drive.  Let’s go to sheet Z4 which I’ll mark as exhibit A-4, this sheet is an enlarged site plan of the water tank.  On the left hand side and on the right hand side is an elevation of the water tank, and an enlarged equipment plan and elevation.  Let’s start with the left hand side the water tank is right in the center depicting the existing antennas as well as the proposed antennas by AT&T.  The difference between the Verizon antenna installation and the AT&T installation Verizon service mounted their antennas on the water tank.  The top of the Verizon antennas do not extend above the top of the rim.  AT&T could not do that since Verizon already leased that space their antennas are going on the top of the water tank and you can see that on the site elevation on exhibit A-4.  Equipment wise if you remember Verizon was approved for a 12 foot by 30 foot, 12 foot wide by 30 foot deep along prefabricated equipment shelter it looks like a large shed in someone’s backyard.  The technician would walk into it they would be freestanding racks with radios and equipment in it.  Because of the Highlands restrictions here where we can only increase so much impervious service AT&T had to use a small footprint and to accommodate that to meet the Highlands regulations and their equipment requirements they’re using outdoor equipment cabinets.  So a technician would not actually walk into their equipment they would just stand outside open a door and the radio equipment would be right behind the door.  They look like small refrigerators 30 inches by 30 inches square about 5 foot 6 high and we’re locating those on the west side of the tanks so they’re farthest away from Gail Drive.  
MR. LEVINE:

With reference to what’s been marked for the record as A-4 you had described the antennas as going at the top of the water tank.  There is an ordinance requirement that says when your affixing antennas to an existing structure the antenna is not to extend more than 10 feet above the point at which it’s attached to that existing structure.  Could you just confirm for us that we do in fact comply with that ordinance requirement?
MR. COLASURDO:
We do the rim of the water tank we have a measurement of 117 feet above ground level and that’s not the actual tippy top of the tank.  The top of the existing water tank we have measured at 123 feet 7 inches above grade.  The proposed antennas are 126 feet above grade so it’s slightly higher than the highest part of that existing water tank.  I’m going to label sheet Z5 as A-5 for the record.

MS. GADELHA:

Excuse me we have a question just for a moment please.  Go ahead Scott.

MR. VAN NESS:

When you calculated the area for impervious coverage does that calculation including the new proposed development from Verizon?

MR. COLASURDO:
Yes it was I have those numbers all worked out if you want to hear them but today I actually have . . . I can submit . . . we received a letter from Highlands themselves they received our application they reviewed it and they deemed it complete so they’ve started their review.

MR. BUCZYNSKI:
Yeah we have that.

MR. COLASURDO:
You have that too?  Okay.  

MR. VAN NESS:

That’s good enough for me.

MR. COLASURDO:
That’s good enough?  Landscaping when I did walk the site with Mr. Quinn they’re concerned about some of the adjacent properties.  The location of the AT&T equipment is outside of the existing fenced area it was a request made by Mr. Quinn.  We are slightly digging into the tree line that’s there there was a comment about showing trees to be removed I do not believe there’s any trees that need to be removed that have a caliper of 4 inches or larger but I will document that one more time with the survey.  We are proposing 16 landscape shrubs to cover three sides, the three sides of our equipment that do not face the water tank.  It would be to the, I guess north, west and south of our equipment.  Z5 is a landscape plan depicting that and we’re calling out right now Norway spruce to be planted 7 to 8 feet at the time of planting and if the Board would like us to change any of that we can.  
MR. LEVINE:

Frank can you just mark Z5 as A-5 for our record please.

MR. COLASURDO:
A-5 is marked.

MR. LEVINE:

Okay thank you.

MR. COLASURDO:
The last sheet which is Z6 which I’ll label as A-6 this is just some typical site details in the upper right hand corner is the chain link fence that we’re proposing. It’s the same fence that’s out there now and we’re trying to match the existing fencing.  In this particular design Mr. Quinn had asked that any coaxial cable that leaves our equipment and extends to the water tank before it goes vertically to the antennas if we can run it underground.  It’s something that carriers do not like to do water gets in that trench and could possibly freeze and damage the coaxial cable but in this case AT&T agreed to comply.  Verizon has an overhead coaxial support tray that takes it coaxial from its equipment shelter to the water tank.  In this particular application AT&T will run it underground and it will have a cover on it that’s traffic rated that’s just in case the DPW has to drive around the water tank they know they can drive over this trench and won’t damage anything.  On sheet Z7 I want to label that one as A-7 its just some quick antenna details.  In the lower middle section of the pages just some specifications on the height, width, depth and weight of the antennas being proposed 50.9 inches high, 10.6 inches wide, 5.2 inches deep and they weigh 32 pounds each.  The real important detail with respect to the antenna mounting is in the upper right hand corner to the far right of the sheet you have a plan of the water tank and we’re giving the orientation of the proposed AT&T antennas.  There’s three sets of four antennas that are being proposed.  Sector one is designated as Alpha, Section two is designated as Beta that’s facing south, and Section three is designated as Gamma and that’s essentially facing west.  So you’ve got one sector facing north, one sector facing south and one set of four antennas facing west.  The way we plan to mount those is called a corral it’s a little isometric right in the top middle sheet of a section of that corral.  It forms a circle on the top of the tank it is welded to the top of the tank with a special stud welding process that we use so we don’t damage the lining of the inside of the tank and once completed it forms a circle and it actually forms a barrier for anybody climbing up on top of that tank working on the antennas.  All of the work is done from behind that’s where all of the connectors are so it acts as two solutions it supports our antennas and also acts as a guardrail to prevent anybody from going in front of the antennas or off the edge of the tank.  
MR. BUCZYNSKI:
Just a question if I could?

MS. GADELHA:

Please.

MR. BUCZYNSKI:
I’m looking at your plan Frank that’s different from the plan that we have we don’t have the ring.

MR. COLASURDO:
Okay.

MR. BUCZYNSKI:
Was that a revised plan?

MR. COLASURDO:
Well it looks like a plotter I must have had that layer turned off because you still have the isometric of the customer water tank corral.

MR. BUCZYNSKI:
Yeah that’s the only thing we’re missing.

MR. COLASURDO:
What the Township Engineer pointed out is on my plans you see a circle that dark black circle, on the plans you have all you see is the V shapes.  A layer must have been turned off when this thing went through the plotter.

MR. BUCZYNSKI:
So we’ll just get revised plans submitted then?

MR. COLASURDO:
Yes.

MRS. NATAFALUSY:
It’s on the reduced version.

MR. BUCZYNSKI:
It’s not on the full version.  No I don’t need to see it I just noticed it was different I wanted to make sure that was on the revision.

MR. COLASURDO:
A plotting glitch I apologize for that.

MR. BUCZYNSKI:
No problem.

MAYOR SCAPICCHIO:
How high is that mounting bracket?

MR. COLASURDO:
Is the what?

MAYOR SCAPICCHIO:
How high is that?

MR. COLASURDO:
The railing?

MAYOR SCAPICCHIO:
Yes.

MR. COLASURDO:
About 36 inches high.

MR. CAVANAUGH:
So I have a question.

MS. GADELHA:

Yes.

MR. CAVANAUGH:
I understand that this is going to protect your workers but where the Verizon worker that has to go outside of this now for their panels that are hanging on the side of the tank how do they service those?
MR. COLASURDO:
The Verizon antennas are being hung just like that picture is on the wall.  There’s mounts that are welded to the tank itself and the antennas are attached with the brackets that are supplied on the back of them.  But the Verizon antennas don’t extend above the top of the water tank rim that’s how we can get two carriers on here without interfering with each other.

MR. CAVANAUGH:
How would they service it they would need a cherry picker or something?

MR. COLASURDO:
They would get a man lift or some of the antenna contractors would actually repel from the top.

MR. CAVANAUGH:
So they would climb over your barrier.

MR. COLASURDO:
Yes as long as they have all of their safety harnesses on and all of that good stuff.

MS. GADELHA:

Steve did you have something?

MR. BEDELL:

Yeah I know there’s going to be trees added and I may have missed are any trees going to be removed?

MR. COLASURDO:
At this point my answer is yes but they’re trees that do not have a caliper of 2 or 4 inches they’re all small saplings.  We’re just barely breaking into that wood line on the west side of the water tank.

MR. BEDELL:

And how far will those cabinets be from the homeowner I guess looking at the tower to the left?  I know there’s a thick brush of mature trees and also would these cabinets produce any kind of a humming you know during the day during the night.

MR. COLASURDO:
When you say to the left I’m on sheet Z3 which has been marked . . . 

MR. BEDELL:

Yeah so right there so looking at the water tower to your left there’s a home right there and to the right there is a dead end there’s a home back there.

MR. COLASURDO:
You’re asking how close to Block . . . 

MR. BEDELL:

No drop your pencil down about a foot.  Do you see the AT&T symbol?  

MR. COLASURDO:
Yeah.

MR. BEDELL:

Right there there’s a home pretty much like right there.

MR. COLASURDO:
That would be identified as Lot 5. 

MR. BEDELL:

Okay so how far are you from their property line?

MR. COLASURDO:
I don’t have the measurement from our equipment to the home but I do have the measurement from our equipment to the closest property line which is 51 feet 11 inches.  So 50 feet minimum from our equipment to the property line that house has got to be conservatively another 20 feet from the side property line.

MR. BEDELL:

Okay what is the minimum distance from the . . . to the adjacent property line?

MR. COLASURDO:
The minimum distance to any property line is 51 feet 11 inches from the proposed equipment.

MR. LEVINE:

And required is 50 feet.

MR. BEDELL:

50 feet okay.  Will these cabinets make a hum or a humming during the day and will it be audible to the homeowners?

MR. COLASURDO:
I’ll answer more questions on the site plans I just want to do some quick equipment characteristics that will give you your answer.  This is a wireless telecommunications facility it’s designed to be unmanned.  Being unmanned we don’t require any potable water and will not produce any sewerage.  We won’t produce any traffic with the exception of a routine maintenance visit every 4 to 6 weeks a technician will come up in a Ford Explorer type of vehicle, park in the existing driveway, walk to his equipment, there was a question of whether the tech was going to drive right up to the equipment cabinets he will not do that we plan to use the existing paved drive park our vehicle there and then walk back to the equipment cabinets.  Not being unmanned I don’t want you to think it’s not monitored.  This facility is watched 24 hours a day seven days a week with a series of silent alarms that are built into the equipment.  If the power goes out my switch knows about it, if someone tries to tamper with my equipment my switch knows about it.  If any of the antennas malfunction or radios inside malfunction my switch knows about it.  So not having a permanent employee there I don’t want you to think it’s not watched we watch it 24 hours a day 7 days a week from a remote monitoring facility.  With respect to noise some of the cabinets had a fan built into the door that fan is simply to get the hot air out of the cabinet.  If you were to open up one of these doors you’d see . . . . it would look like a bunch of mini VCR’s in there they produce heat, equipment heat they like to get that heat out of there and that fan would be equivalent to what you have in your bathroom to vent it.  Don’t produce any vibration, any smoke, any glare or any odor.  The noise that is produced by those fans would meet the New Jersey Department of Environmental Protection’s noise standards.  In this particular case since I have a residential property adjacent to my equipment I have to meet daytime limits of 65 decibels, night time between 10:00 p.m. and 7:00 a.m. will be 55 decibels.  These equipment cabinets produce about 57 decibels at 3 feet away, I have 50 feet plus woods to buffer that to get down to that 2 decibels at nighttime.  Once I double the distance between my source of my receiver I lose 6 decibels so I’m pretty comfortable telling you we’re going to meet any noise standards.  Electric, require 200 amp. Electric service and a telephone line I can tell you as the architect for Verizon, Verizon’s already set those utilities up we’ve met the utility companies out there already there will be a multi meter packs so AT&T will just order a meter to go in there and a telephone service that (inaudible) will be capable of supporting multiple carriers.  

MR. LEVINE:

The only question I have for you is we received a report from Van Cleef Engineering dated January 3 that just had a series of technical items listed on it.  I just wanted to confirm for our record that the applicant didn’t have any objections to any of those.

MR. COLASURDO:
I reviewed all of the technical items with AT&T and everything is agreeable.  

MR. BUCZYNSKI:
Just one item on that Frank was item number 5 on page 2 of my report, are we going to get a structural analysis submitted?

MR. COLASURDO:
Actually tomorrow I’m meeting Mr. Quinn at the DPW yard he has a set of I’m hoping are shop drawings for the water tank that will give me the thickness of the steel the type of steel used.  Once I get those I already have what we call an antenna climber scheduled to actually climb the tank and take additional measurements for me.  I need to identify the township railing system up there if it’s anything different than the drawings this evening I want to know so I can make sure that’s supported properly.  One of AT&T’s responsibilities is to rebuild that or structurally upgrade it so it’s not wobbling.  So yes I will have a structural report prepared by his name is Ralph Petriconi he’s a licensed P.E. in the State of New Jersey and he does all of my stress analysis on water tanks.  

MR. BUCZYNSKI:
Okay thank you.

MR. CAVANAUGH:
Gene as a point since they’re going to do some trenching would it be prudent to show on the drawing where the existing water lines are for the (inaudible) just for orientation purposes?

MR. BUCZYNSKI:
That’s probably available I don’t think it’s shown on the plans but it would be available through plans I think that the town has.

MR. COLASURDO:
What we do show on the plans is the existing fire hydrant valve and I can tell you from being out on the site with Mr. Quinn the piping is exiting, the underground piping is exiting the water tank and traveling north to Gail Drive.  We’re on the west south side.

MR. BUCZYNSKI:
Looking at my report I think there’s one other item.

MR. COLASURDO:
And I think I also forgot to mention the municipality themselves has radio equipment on the ground here and some municipal whips on this tank as well so there essentially will be three if approved tonight antenna systems here.
MR. BUCZYNSKI:
Item 7 on my report I’m not sure if you have somebody or if you’re going to testify relative, it’s probably obvious the need to construct the facility at this location.

MR. LEVINE:

Yeah I mean we do have a radio frequency specialist here although with it being a permitted use and the wireless ordinance not having a requirement that there be a demonstration of need we thought it might be kind of superfluous but if the Board is going to insist on hearing that we can certainly do that.

MR. CAVANAUGH:
The only question I have is I’d like to get him on the record as when these antennas go in what additional coverage does it provide from a wireless prospective.

MR. LEVINE:

If you want to hear about that then we need to hear from our RF guy.

MR. MCGROARTY:
Before we do that can we just finish I just have one or two comments so we don’t have to bring this witness back unless you want.

MR. BUCZYNSKI:
That’s the only outstanding item I think in my report.

MS. GADELHA:

Yeah go ahead Chuck.

MR. MCGROARTY:
I was just going to suggest the testimony was that they will verify that the size trees would not trigger the replacement requirement.  If the Board is satisfied with the number that’s provided and we’ve kind of been out to the site a few times in the past we kind of know what’s out there I think that would be a reasonable compromise.  But I would suggest rather than, and I realize the plan submitted has sort of a generic footprint and said it will be subject to decisions later, I would concentrate the trees facing Lot 5.  Because the back of this is where it opens up to the woods and that’s never going to be developed.  And I would also suggest maybe a combination with the 16 trees that are proposed are good I would suggest some, along the fence line some shrubbery as well particularly I think it would help alleviate any residual noise that might be generated from those fans.  So if you have . . . . and there it doesn’t have to be that extensive but at least along the back or I should say the south perimeter of that fence in a limited area by this new equipment.  
MR. COLASURDO:
Let me just clarify on the record I’m showing in plan 19 and the schedule says 16 so we actually corrected the plan which I believe said 16 and never changed our schedule so we have 19 in plants shown right now.

MR. BUCZYNSKI:
Are you going to stay with 19?

MR. COLASURDO:
We’re going to stay with 19 and what I was also going to say is I mean if you want us to . . . . after this thing is constructed I can run out there with your professionals and we can lay out the trees and you might want 19, you might want 10.

MR. BEDELL:

I like the idea that to put trees bordering you know 1,000 acres of land it’s . . . for Lot 5 that makes a lot more sense.

MR. MCGROARTY:
Yeah 19 it certainly a reasonable proposal it may actually be as you just suggested too many in some cases it would interfere with the existing trees.  So I think that that’s something we can work out but I think if we can get that combination particularly with the shrubbery along that side it would help.  

MR. BUZAK:

Is that in addition to the trees?

MR. MCGROARTY:
I would suggest that yes.  And then there’s no need for them if the Board is comfortable with this there’s no need for them to go back out and do any more surveying work in terms of the size trees, etc. if that’s acceptable to the Board.

MR. BUCZYNSKI:
Are we going to get some type of typical detail for the shrubbery or when we going to do that?

MR. COLASURDO:
We have one on the plans now I mean . . . .

MR. BUCZYNSKI:
For the trees.

MR. COLASURDO:
The way I see it I’ll meet with your professionals out there with a couple of stakes you tell me where you want them I’ll put the stakes in the ground and whatever trees that are selected I can update the plans, I can do as-builts.
MR. MCGROARTY:
Yeah we’d need an updated plan yeah.

MR. COLASURDO:
Yeah I can do a set of as-built plans for the record.

MR. BUCZYNSKI:
That’s fine.

MR. LEVINE:

Just to be clear I think what I’m hearing the Board saying is they’re recommending that in addition to the trees that we’re showing I think there is a small strip of additional shrubbery that they’re looking for.

MR. BUCZYNSKI:
Right and we’d like a detail of what type of shrubbery and just agree at some point on what shrubbery we want put in there.

MR. MCGROARTY:
Yeah and the suggestion is that the working number right now is 19 Spruce I believe you have on there.  If field conditions show that 16 would fit and the other 3 don’t or whatever number then 19 is the maximum but it doesn’t necessarily have to be that number if it doesn’t work.

MR. BUCZYNSKI:
To be determined in the field by the professionals.

MR. MCGROARTY:
And then the only other thought I would offer is that . . . because I know that the Public Works had a similar comment, I didn’t realize that that was the plan then so that your technicians will park on the paved area and walk in the back.  They’re sort of like on their honor to do that but if they for whatever choose to drive over the lawn area and there’s some damage to that lawn area they’re going to be responsible for it I think if there’s some condition to that affect.

MS. GADELHA:

Yeah would we put that in the resolution then?

MR. VAN NESS:

You can have it subject to Ordinance 176-11 no parking on the grass.

MR. MCGROARTY:
Well even if they don’t park but just drive over it and over time . . . I mean if they say they’re not going to do it then I believe they won’t do it but . . . .

MR. COLASURDO:
During construction they might have to take some vehicles through that edge and anything they disturb they will repair and replace, they will re-vegetate.  But you know once it’s built the technicians will walk and if they do drive and put tire tracks on give AT&T a call and they’ll fix it.
MS. GADELHA:

Anything else?  Nelson.

MR. RUSSELL:

Yeah a curiosity question.  Is this 3G or 4G and what’s the difference?

MR. COLASURDO:
That is a question for that gentleman right there, the RF engineer.

MS. GADELHA:

Okay anyone else for Mr. Colasurdo.  Okay at this time I’d like to open the meeting up to the public for any questions to this witness.  Please come up state your name and address.

MR. GIFFORD:

Hi my name is Tim Gifford I live at 8 Gail which is the property that faces the water tower.  The water tower is our closest neighbor besides the Abrams’ which is on the right and there’s another property owner on the other side that’s possibly as close as we are.  I know my wife is home with my kids and our main concerns are several.  The antennas placed at the top of the tower we’re concerned on how that will be viewed from the public since thousands and thousands of people are going to see the top of this tank and we live very, very close to this tank it may very, very deeply affect our resale of the home.  We’ve seen what antennas look like on towers I think if you go over into Flanders over by the Shop Rite you can look straight out and you see a water tower with what looks like hair on it.  We’re talking about 11 antennas on the top it will kind of resemble that same appearance.  That being said we’re wondering why the fences have to be so high and have barbed wire on them.  It’s just aesthetically there I did notice lately that there is barbed wire over a fence that we have now and I didn’t notice that before but I was concerned of why is the barbed wire actually necessary.
MR. COLASURDO:
It’s not.  I can raise that fence to 7 feet, right now it’s a 6 foot high fence with 12 inches of barbed wire if the Board doesn’t like the barbed wire I can get rid of it and just make that a 7 foot high chain link fence.  We were just trying to match what was already on site but I can remove that barbed wire and I’ll just have a 7 foot high chain link fence.

MR. BUCZYNSKI:
The rest of it will still have barbed wire.

MR. COLASURDO:
The existing fence around the water tank still has barbed wire yeah but I have the flexibility of removing it if you’d like.

MR. LEVINE:

Remove what we’re proposing.

MR. COLASURDO:
Remove the barbed wire.

MR. LEVINE:

Yeah.

MR. GIFFORD:

I mean that addresses two of our concerns a major concern of course on the land you know trees and shrubbery are nice because it will be what we see every day but we’re also very concerned about the health effects of cellular radiation.  Has anybody actually you know googled anything about that?  I’m sure this comes up quite a bit when these guys show up but its all proximity based.  The closer you are and if the antennas face you and they do seem like they will be facing our home it just projects out and it’s very powerful and as it ranges away from the source it does diminish significantly but there are definitely health effects.  I’ve made several copies if the Board would like to see some information of what I refer to you know a lot of its kind of hush hush who you pay to get the survey done but it’s kind of a good idea to be aware of what we’re approving in our neighborhood.  And of course being so close to the water tower and the source of this radiation, very concerning.  I know when we purchased we’re only fairly new owners I think we purchased about 7 months ago so I didn’t even know there was a Verizon antenna there.  One of our objectives when we looked for a home was I looked specifically at the water tower to see if there was a lot of antennas on it and I saw there wasn’t and I said that’s good.  With 12 new antennas added to the additional one that Verizon has that’s a lot of radiation.
MS. GADELHA:

Mr. Gifford I appreciate your concern and we will hear from another witness that will address that and hopefully swayed your concerns and if not you’ll have another opportunity to come up and ask questions of that witness.

MR. GIFFORD:

Sure.

MS. GADELHA:

Anything else for this witness?

MR. GIFFORD:

I think that covers most of my concerns.  Thank you.

MS. GADELHA:

Okay thank you.  Okay so anyone else from the public who would like to make a comment or ask a question of this witness?  Okay Mr. Levine you may call your next witness.

MR. COLASURDO:
Thank you.

MR. LEVINE:

Thanks Frank.  

(YVAN JOSEPH SWORN IN FOR THE RECORD)

MR. BUZAK:

Would you please state your name and business address for the record spelling your last name.

MR. JOSEPH:

My name is Yvan spelled (Y-V-A-N) last name Joseph (J-O-S-E-P-H) and I am the radio frequency engineer on behalf of AT&T Wireless.  My business address is 1355 Fifteenth Street, Fort Lee, New Jersey.

MR. LEVINE:

Could you review for the Board a little bit your educational background and professional experience please.

MR. JOSEPH:

Sure I hold a Bachelor’s Degree in Electrical Engineering from Polytechnic University in Brooklyn where I did my studies in actually wireless communication.  I’ve worked for 15 years throughout the State of New Jersey and New York for various wireless carriers such as AT&T, Nextel, Sprint, T-Mobile designing and providing RF consulting to various wireless carriers throughout the Tri-State.  I’ve testified throughout about 50 townships throughout New Jersey and New York including . . . this is my first time I’m testifying in Mt. Olive but I’ve testified throughout Wall Township, Flemington, throughout the whole State of New Jersey.

MR. LEVINE:

And you’re qualified to testify as an expert in Radio Frequency Engineering?

MR. JOSEPH:

That is correct.

MR. LEVINE:

I’d like to offer this gentleman as an expert in that capacity this evening as well.
MS. GADELHA:

Any questions?  No, okay proceed.

MR. LEVINE:

Thank you.  A couple of bases to cover, going back to the first item there was a question about the additional coverage that this site would provide if it were approved.  And you’ve got some exhibits there if you’re going to refer to that first one could you mark it as applicant’s A-8 and identify it for the Board please?

MR. JOSEPH:

Sure.  What I’ve prepared in my exhibit is a USGS which stands for United States Geographical Survey map and what it depicts is geographic terrain, roads, bodies of water in and around the town.  I’ve demonstrated the borders of the town with a black line and I’ve also identified other wireless facilities within AT&T’s networks with various different color dots.  The green dots represent existing facilities in and around the town and the blue dot represents our proposed facility.  On top of the USGS map I have an overlay which depicts the existing usable signal in and around the town.  

MR. LEVINE:

That’s what’s shown in green?

MR. BUZAK:

Mr. Joseph why don’t we mark the first overlay as A-9.  Thank you.

MR. JOSEPH:

Okay and what this represents is the existing coverage in and around the Township of Mt. Olive.  Currently we have a significant gap in service along Flanders-Drakestown Road from the area of around Route 206 to the town border to about River Road.  
MR. LEVINE:

And that gap is shown in what color on the overlay.

MR. JOSEPH:

It’s actually clear.  Green represents the existing coverage, and as you can see near all of our existing sites we have a decent level of service and due to the topography and the terrain there are areas that signal from our network cannot reach.  So the areas that you see that are not shaded are areas that have less than acceptable levels of signal.  And then my last overlay represents the coverage that’s going to be attained from the facility located at 5 Gail Drive.

MR. BUZAK:

And Mr. Joseph lets mark that as A-10 if we can please.

MR. JOSEPH:

As I mentioned this overlay represents the level of service that will be increased and added on to our existing network from the use of this water tank located at 5 Gail Drive.  

MR. LEVINE:

And is it fair to say that the vast majority of that additional coverage will be provided here in Mt. Olive?

MR. JOSEPH:

That is correct.  Practically, I would say 90 percent of the coverage will be fixated . . . . will be within the town itself especially along like I said Flanders-Drakestown Road from the area of around Route 206 to the town border.  

MR. LEVINE:

Now there was another question from another Board member with regard to 3G and 4G and whether or not this site would be 3G or 4G and if so what the difference is.  Could you just give a little bit of information with regard to that?

MR. JOSEPH:

Sure.  Basically as technology increases they represent that what 3G stands for third generation, fourth generation, etc. the original wireless systems from 20, 30 years were first generation.  Now we’re in a digital state where the technology is gone to a point where everything is all digital.  Currently AT&T uses both 3G and 4G technologies so this facility will accommodate both technologies.  

MR. RUSSELL:

4G is digital and 3G is analog?

MR. JOSEPH:

They’re all digital actually after 2G everything went digital.  So it’s just different types of technology.  The technology that’s going to be used, that’s currently used by AT&T is called UMTS and that’s a 3G technology and the next technology which will be incorporated with the site is called LTE and that’s a 4G technology.  The difference they’re all digital technologies but it’s just the way the technology works the way they compress and send the signals that allow more usage, more data, more voice capacity.  
MR. LEVINE:

I think the third general area of questioning that came from a member of the public who lives not too far away from this facility was questions and concerns having to do with health effects.  Now is the applicant an FCC Licensed Telecommunications Carrier?

MR. JOSEPH:

That’s correct AT&T holds the license to operate in 850 and 1900 megahertz band wave. 

MR. LEVINE:

Okay and as an FCC licensee is there an FCC mandated formula and approach to be used in order to analyze what the total emissions will be from these types of cellular sites.  Is there just set forth a way that that gets analyzed and calculated?
MR. JOSEPH:

Yes there is.  The Federal Government mandates that all wireless carriers meet their maximum permissible exposure limits and we have done a survey, a preliminary survey of the site and based on our results this site will meet less than 5 percent of the Federal Governments maximum permissible exposure limits.  I believe the exact number on the report is actually this site will meet 1.6 percent of the Federal Government’s maximum permissible exposure limits for a wireless communications carrier located at this facility.

MR. LEVINE:

And is that a cumulative determination taking into account emissions from both AT&T as well as Verizon?

MR. JOSEPH:

That’s a worst case scenario assuming that our antennas are powered full time 24 hours a day.

MR. LEVINE:

Okay and there is also in New Jersey a State level statute with regard to emissions levels that’s actually has a higher threshold.  In other words it’s less protective than the Federal Standards so if we comply with the Federal Standards we would meet the State Standard by an even wider margin is that correct?

MR. JOSEPH:

That is correct.

MR. LEVINE:

I don’t know that I have any further questions for this gentleman.  I would make him available to the Board and any members of the public.

MR. BUZAK:

I just wasn’t clear on your answer on the cumulative, was it both Verizon and AT&T because you said the worst case scenario was like the 1.6 percent.

MR. JOSEPH:

Right.

MR. BUZAK:

And the question that was asked of you was whether or not that included the AT&T as well as Verizon the aggregate number or was this just the worst case utilizing the AT&T emission?

MR. JOSEPH:

Our report was done for AT&T’s . . . the cumulative of actually both carriers that’s correct.

MR. BUZAK:

Okay so it’s both carriers all right thank you.

MS. GADELHA:

Gene?

MR. BUCZYNSKI:
Yeah just a question I know other carriers have submitted that report to us, can that be submitted to this application just for the files?

MR. JOSEPH:

Sure I’m happy to do that.

MS. GADELHA:

Anyone from . . . .

MR. CAVANAUGH:
Just in layman’s terms what does 1 percent mean is that based on a certain amount of wattage or something?

MR. JOSEPH:

Well 100 percent is the level, even at 100 percent just to let you know these are the levels that the Federal Government puts out that all carriers or anyone providing any source of emissions has to meet.  Now at 100 percent that doesn’t mean that that’s actually dangerous that’s just the level that we have to be under.  Our emissions will be 1.6 percent of that 100 percent so that means we’re not even approaching anywhere near what the government says that at this level we need to start either putting some sort of notice or barricades or anything like that.  

MR. CAVANAUGH:
So then you’re suggesting then in your worst case analysis that the power would be running on 100 percent.

MR. JOSEPH:

At a worst case scenario . . . . .

MR. CAVANAUGH:
In a typical installation what is the power running throughout the day on an average percentage? 

MR. JOSEPH:

Okay well 100 percent what this is based on is for example if all of these sites are based on capacity.  The more traffic that’s in the area the more raters the more the antennas are turned on.  At night of course there’s going to be less capacity so this is assuming that everything was . . . all the radios were being used simultaneously all at the same time which normally is very rare, most of the time it’s usually about 10 to 15 to 20 percent it varies depending on the area.  

MR. CAVANAUGH:
Thank you.

MS. GADELHA:

Mayor?

MAYOR SCAPICCHIO:
I see the blue what does that represent in terms of square miles or how much area, additional area does that actually represent?
MR. JOSEPH:

Well I have a scale bar here which represents about 2 miles so if you were to measure that out that’s almost a little less than 4 miles worth of . . . that’s straight line but as far as square I don’t have the . . . I would say maybe 4 to 5 square miles.

MAYOR SCAPICCHIO:
It’s a large area.

MR. JOSEPH:

Right.

MAYOR SCAPICCHIO:
Thank you.

MS. GADELHA:

Nelson?

MR. RUSSELL:

Yeah you gave some specific frequencies, I don’t know what that means.  I mean microwaves cook birds for Thanksgiving where does this fall in the microwave range?
MR. JOSEPH:

Okay well AT&T operates actually at two different frequencies in this area.  They have a license to operate in what they call 850 megahertz range and then the other license is for their 1900 megahertz range.  Just to give you an idea the license for the 850 megahertz range was the old television signals say channel 69 and up and if you know they kind of chopped off those frequencies and they’re being allocated now for wireless communications.  So these are just radio signals at one time used to be TV signals but now they’re being used for wireless communications.  As they ran out of frequencies for the what they call the cellular band in the 850 range the government assigned additional frequencies that were in the 1900 which actually as you get higher in frequency it’s . . . the waves are shorter so the signal doesn’t propagate as high.  
MR. RUSSELL:

What’s my microwave?

MR. JOSEPH:

Well different microwaves operated on different frequencies.  I believe they’re around 2500 megahertz.

MR. RUSSELL:

So these are lower.

MR. JOSEPH:

These are lower yes.  Keep in mind your typical microwave oven is probably around 500 to 1,000 watts, the wattage for cellular frequencies are anywhere from 50 to a couple of hundred watts of power.  

MR. LEVINE:

So a much lower power facility?

MR. JOSEPH:

It’s much lower power correct.

MS. GADELHA:

Any other questions from the Board for this witness?  I’d like to open it up to the public at this time for questions or statement for this witness.  Okay I’ll close it to the public do you have another witness Mr. Levine?

MR. LEVINE:

I don’t, no that covers it.

MS. GADELHA:

Okay so the barbed wire issue came up and you’re given the option of you can put that up and keep it at 6 feet although there’s still going to be barbed wire (inaudible).  Mr. Gifford had raised that and so need to discuss if we want to . . . . Steve?
MR. BEDELL:

I have a question I guess for the attorney and the witnesses.  What are your thoughts on having the barbed wire versus the no barbed wire?  Or having I guess your 5 foot fence and the barbed wire versus a 7 foot without the barbed wire.

MR. LEVINE:

Yeah that’s probably a question best put to you but I’m just the attorney so I don’t have any opinions on that.

MR. COLASURDO:
Even if they put up the barbed wire it’s an extra anti-climbing device.

MR. BEDELL:

I mean do you use it in 98 percent of all of the other cases?

MR. COLASURDO:
I use it wherever a Board does not want me to use it.

MR. BEDELL:

And how many cases . . . . I mean what percentages of Boards don’t want that?  I mean I’m not trying to pin you down for an exact number.

MR. COLASURDO:
Only 20 percent.  The thing I want to say is our cabinets are locked so even if someone wants to get over the fence they’d still have to get through the security devices on the cabinets.

MR. BEDELL:

And there’s already barbed wire on the outer perimeter.

MR. COLASURDO:
So the only objection I usually have when it comes to the fencing is Boards will ask for a wood fence versus chain link.  I don’t like that because you lose a little security someone could get behind the board on board and you can’t see in.  But you know 6 foot or 7 foot without the barbed wire is fine, 6 foot high with the barbed wire is fine as well.

MR. LEVINE:

In speaking with Mr. Quinn or otherwise do you have any sense for whether or not you know either the township or the water utility would want our additional fencing to have barbed wire to match that that’s there already.  In fact that was there to prevent the water tank itself before the carriers even came onto the property?
MR. COLASURDO:
No I didn’t get any indication from Mr. Quinn whether he preferred or he didn’t prefer.

MR. BUCZYNSKI:
Just a concern I mean if you know the request from Mr. Gifford this fence is really on the other side of the water tank so it wouldn’t really affect Mr. Gifford as far as the barbed wire fence.  You know I just think if you have so much . . . a great percentage of barbed wire you would want to just continue that same fence line.

MR. BEDELL:

 Just a safety aspect that’s kind of why I raised the question.  
MR. RUSSELL:

We have horse farms we have electric fences and barbed wire for cattle I mean it’s been around for 100 years.

MR. CAVANAUGH:
I mean in my opinion and I’ve done different security audits for power utilities and there are requirements for barbed wire, from a security standpoint barbed wire is better.  It is a deterrent for people climbing over and since this is a water utility and a telecommunication facility aesthetically it’s also a deterrent to see barbed wire.  And if you don’t see barbed wire in one part of the property and you do in the other you have an incentive to try to climb over the fence.  So I would suggest we keep it . . . 
MR. MCGROARTY:
And especially this portion of the fence because it will not be visible from the street.
MR. CAVANAUH:
Yeah so my suggestion is we do stick to the barbed wire.

MAYOR SCAPICCHIO:
I think the township puts the barbed wire to protect the water tank I think that’s what it’s there for.

MS. GADELHA:

Okay so is the consensus then that we’ll keep it status quo, what’s proposed?   Okay so is there any other discussion relating to this application before we move forward?  Okay I’d like to entertain a motion.

MR. RUSSELL:

I’ll move that PB 10-34 be approved.
MS. GADELHA:

Okay thank you Nelson.

MR. STASZAK:

Second.

MR. BUZAK:

I’d suggest that the following conditions be inserted.  That a structural study showing that the tank can support the antenna be submitted and that study obviously demonstrate that it can.  That the trees are to be concentrated to face Lot 5 that along the fence line there will be shrubbery installed to the satisfaction of the engineer and the planner, that the applicant will be responsible for any damage done to the lawn area if vehicles drive over the grass area, that radio frequency report that Mr. Joseph referred to will be submitted as part of the record, and then the usual conditions that we normally have.  

MR. LEVINE:

And thank you Mr. Buzak and could I just clarify there was some discussion, did I understand the outcome of that discussion with regard to the need for the tree survey that that would not be required, was I correct about that Mr. McGroarty?

MR. MCGROARTY:
That would be my suggestion that it not be given the number of trees and the agreement to do the shrubbery if the Board is comfortable with that.  I would say it’s unnecessary at this point.  Do you agree?

MR. BUCZYNSKI:
Oh yeah I agree.

MS. GADELHA:

Are those acceptable Nelson, Jim?  Okay excellent any other discussion?  Roll call please Catherine.

MRS. NATAFALUSY:
John Cavanaugh
- yes




Joe Fleischner

- abs.




Rene Gadelha

- yes




Nelson Russell

- yes




Mayor Scapicchio
- yes




Jim Staszak

- yes




Scott Van Ness

- yes




Steve Bedell

- yes

MR. LEVINE:

Thank you very much have a good evening.

MS. GADELHA:

Anything else?  Motion to adjourn.

MR. VAN NESS:

Aye.

MS. GADELHA:

Second everybody.

(MEETING ADJOURNED AT 8:50 P.M.)
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